
Resources and Transformation Directorate
Legal and Democratic Services  Cumbria House, 107-117 Botchergate, 

Carlisle, CA1 1RD  Tel 01228 227354  
Email democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk

1

26 February 2018

To:  The Chair and Members of the Holehird 
Trust Joint Committee

Agenda
HOLEHIRD TRUST JOINT COMMITTEE

A meeting of the Holehird Trust Joint Committee will be held as follows: 

Date: Thursday 8 March 2018
Time: 10.00 am
Place: County Offices, Kendal, LA9 4RQ

Dawn Roberts
Corporate Director – Resources and Transformation

Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to:  Holly English
Direct Line: 01228 227354
Email: holly.english@cumbria.gov.uk

This agenda is available on request in alternative formats

Serving the People of Cumbria



2

MEMBERSHIP

Appointed by Eden Local Committee

Mr A Connell
Mr P Dew
Mr D Whipp

Appointment by South Lakeland Local Committee

Mr J Bland
Mr W Clark
Ms B Gray

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

Agenda and Reports

Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect 
prior to the meeting.  Copies will also be available at the meeting.

The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website – 
http://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=124&Year=0 

Background Papers

Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that 
contain exempt information, can be made to the Legal and Democratic Services Unit at the 
address overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday.

http://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=124&Year=0


3

A G E N D A

PART 1: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC

PART 1 - ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC  

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.
  

2  DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item 
on the agenda which comprises

1 Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 

2 Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from 
the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your 
election expenses.  (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 

3 Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have 
a beneficial interest) and the authority 

(a) Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed; and 

(b) Which has not been fully discharged. 

4 Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.  

5 Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 
the authority for a month or longer.  

6 Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge) 

(a) The landlord is the authority; and

(b) The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial interest.

7 Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where



4

(a) That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area 
of the authority; and

(b) Either – 

(i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class.

In addition, you must also disclose other non-pecuniary interests set out in the Code of 
Conduct where these have not already been registered.

Note

A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner 
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil 
partners). 
  

3  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of any item on the agenda.
  

4  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

To receive the minutes of the previous meeting held on 26 January 2018 (copy 
enclosed).
  (Pages 7 - 12)

5  CUMBRIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AGREEMENT

To consider a report from the Corporate Director – Resources and Transformation (copy 
enclosed).
  (Pages 13 - 24)

6  GRANT APPLICATIONS

To consider grant applications received by Cumbria Community Foundation (copy 
enclosed).
  (Pages 25 - 40)



5

7  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting will be held on 26 June 2018.
  

PART 2 - ITEMS  CONSIDERED IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS  

8  PROPERTY MATTERS

To consider a report from the Land Agent (copy enclosed).
  (Pages 41 - 44)



This page is intentionally left blank



HOLEHIRD TRUST JOINT COMMITTEE

Minutes of a Meeting of the Holehird Trust Joint Committee held on Friday, 26 
January 2018 at 10.00 am at Lakeland Horticultural Society, Holehird Gardens

PRESENT:

Mrs BC Gray (Chair) 

Mr J Bland
Mr W Clark

Mr A Connell
Mr P Dew

Officers in Attendance:-

Mr D Rawle - Land Agent
Miss H English
Ms E Clements
Ms J Dixon
Mr M Towers

- Democratic Services Officer
- Cumbria Community Foundation
- Savills
- Savills

PART 1 – ITEMS CONSIDERED IN THE 
PRESENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

11 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Mr D Whipp.

12 DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests made at the meeting.

13 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED, that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of Item No 8– Property Matters as it contains 
exempt information by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

14 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED, that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 6 March 2017 
be noted.

7

Agenda Item 4



15 CUMBRIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AGREEMENT

The Committee were presented with a report from the Corporate Director – 
Resources and Transformation which identified the unallocated amounts available 
for distribution on grants and fees for the remainder of the 2017-18 financial year.

The Trustees were disappointed that the Finance Officer could not attend the 
meeting as they were unable to receive answers to questions arising out of the 
report. As a result of this it was agreed that the queries raised would be shared with 
the Finance Officer and the Trustees requested that he attend the next meeting.

The following questions were raised and would be shared with the Finance Officer:-

- How was the amount to be spent on grants and fees determined.
- Were the fees included as part of the £40,000 available to be distributed on 

grants or whether this was additional.

It was agreed that the responses would be circulated to all Trustees once received.

RESOLVED, that Members note the amounts available for distribution on 
grants and fees for the remainder of the 2017-18 financial year.

16 GRANT APPLICATIONS

The Trustees considered a report which detailed grant applications received by the 
Cumbria Community Foundation. A list of applications and their eligibility criteria 
was included. All projects had been assessed on the Community Foundation 
Standard Procedure. An additional late application from Eden Timebank Limited 
was put forward for the Committee to consider.

20127b- Morland Newby and Sleagill Village Hall- funding requested extend the 
Morland and Newby Village Hall to provide an easy access storage room.

Amount requested: £3,000
Amount allocated: £2,000

20148a- Ormside Village Hall- funding requested to cover expenditure costs of 
phase 1 and 2 of the project which includes refurbishment of the existing hall and 
modernising of the kitchen. 

Amount requested: £5,000
Amount allocated: £2,000

20216- Kendal and South Lakes Centre for Independent Living- funding requested 
to continue the service.

Amount requested: £11,260
Amount allocated: £1,500

8



The Trustees asked for more information regarding training and qualifications, 
safeguarding and insurance.

20267b- Kendal Lads and Girls Club- funding requested to pay for the running costs 
(6months) of a 2-hour youth club for the young people of Kendal.

Amount requested: £3,562
Amount allocated: £2,000

20418- Lyvennet Nursery Group Crosby Ravensworth- funding requested to keep 
nursery open until end of July 2018.

Amount requested: £10,000
Amount allocated: £2,000

20426a- Riversiders Trust- funding requested to expand the Young Riversiders and 
Golden Moments group activities.

Amount requested: £6,280
Amount allocated: £2,000

20485b- Eden Hearing Services- funding requested to facilitate establishing a new 
charity.

Amount requested: £2,350
Amount allocated: £2,000

20487c- Friends of Abbott Hall Playground- funding requested to transform the 
current Abbott Hall Play Area.

Amount requested: £20,000
Amount allocated: £2,000

20507- Windermere Youth Project- funding requested to work with young people to 
create a short film on understanding the consequences of hate crime.

Amount requested: £3,466
Amount allocated: £1,466

20430c- Castle Street Community Centre Kendal- funding requested to complete a 
first floor extension.

Amount requested: £15,000
Amount allocated: £2,000

20532- Kendal and District Bus Users- funding requested to improve bus shelter 
provision.

Amount requested: £1,000

9



Amount allocated: £1,000

20547- Kendal Timebank- funding requested to cover Public Liability insurance 
premium.

Amount requested: £490
Amount allocated: £490

RESOLVED, that the following funding applications be approved:-

Grant No. Applicant Awarded

20127b Morland Newby and Sleagill Village Hall £2,000
20148a Ormside Village Hall £2,000
20216 Kendal and South Lakes Centre for Independent 

Living ‘One Voice’
£1,500

20267b Kendal Lads and Girls Club £2,000
20418 Lyvennet Nursery Group Crosby Ravensworth £2,000
2042c Riversiders Trust £2,000
20485b Eden Hearing Services £2,000
20487c Friends of Abbott Hall Playground £2,000
20507 Windermere Youth Project £1,466
20430c Castle Street Community Centre Kendal £2,000
20532 Kendal and District Bus Users £1,000
20547 Kendal Timebank £490

17 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

It was noted that the next meeting would be held on 8 March 2018 at 10am in 
County Offices, Kendal.

PART II - ITEMS CONSIDERED NOT IN THE 
PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

18 PROPERTY MATTERS

The Land Agent and representatives from Savills presented a report which updated 
the Trustees on current property matters on the Estate, including:-

 Leonard Cheshire Disability (LCD) – Holehird House

 Lakeland Horticultural Society (LHS)

 Holehird Farm Flat

 1 North Lodge

10



 Far Orrest Farm – Storm Damage

 Woodland Management Plan

 Farm Rent Review

It was AGREED that a further report be brought to the next meeting which would 
discuss the properties in more detail.

The meeting ended at 12.45 pm

11



This page is intentionally left blank



HOLEHIRD TRUST JOINT COMMITTEE

Meeting date: 08 March 2018

From: Corporate Director – Resources and 
Transformation

CUMBRIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AGREEMENT 2017-20

FINANCIAL STATEMENT and DISTRIBUTIONS 2017-18

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This report wishes to identify the unallocated amounts available for 
distribution on grants and fees for the remainder of the 2017-18 
financial year. 

2.0 STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1 There are no strategic planning or equality implications.

3.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 Members are asked to note the amounts available for distribution on 
grants and fees for the remainder of the 2017-18 financial year. 

4.0 BACKGROUND

4.1 At its meeting held on 6th March 2017 it was agreed that the amounts 
unallocated on grants and fees in the 2016-17 financial year were to be 
transferred back to the Trust’s reserves.

4.2 At the same meeting the amount made available for distribution on grants in 
the 2017-18 financial year was set at £ 40,000 with fees of £ 4,000 (10% of 
grants awarded).

4.3 To date the amount awarded on grants is £ 33,670 and fees £ 3,367 (at 10% 
of grants awarded). 

4.4 The amounts remaining available for distribution on grants between now and 
the end of the 2017-18 financial year is £ 6,330 with the amount remaining 
for fees being  £ 633.

13

Agenda Item 5



5.0 OPTIONS

5.1 This is not really an options report but to note the amounts still available  for 
distribution on grants and fees in the 2017-18 financial year.                                                                                                                                    

6.0 RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1 These are set out in the report.

7.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1 There are no direct legal implications to this report at this stage.

8.0 CONCLUSION

8.1 To note the amounts available for distribution on grants and fees for the 
2017-18 financial year. 

David Routledge
Finance Officer (Childrens Services)
20th February 2018

APPENDICES

Financial statements for the ten months ended 31.01.2018

IMPLICATIONS

Electoral Division(s): All within the former County of Westmorland

Executive Decision Yes*  

Key Decision  No*

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?   N/A*

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?  No*

  N/A*If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?

 No*Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

  N/A*Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been 
undertaken?

 No*  Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

14



PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

Holehird Trust Joint Committee, 6th March 2017, Minute No. 31

CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Finance Team files containing details of grants, allocations and correspondence 
with Cumbria Community Foundation re the agreement.

Contact: David Routledge    Tel: 01228 226855
        E-Mail :  david.routledge@cumbria.gov.uk

15



This page is intentionally left blank



THE HOLEHIRD TRUST

Charity Reg No. 235345

Balance Sheet as at 31.01.18

Note 31.01.18 31.03.17 30.11.16

Fixed Assets

Tangible Fixed Assets 3 8,159,745 8,159,745 8,159,745

Investments 2 765,828 723,722 679,216

 

8,925,573 8,883,467 8,838,961

Current Assets

Debtors 4 6,069 7,827 19,464

Cash 166,738 125,510 143,506

172,807 133,337 162,970

Liabilities: due within one year 5 0 0 0

Net Current Assets 172,807 133,337 162,970

Net Assets 9,098,380 9,016,804 9,001,931

Represented By:

Funds and Reserves 6

Unrestricted Funds 736,779 655,203 640,330

Capital Reserve 245,484 245,484 245,484

Revaluation Reserve 8,116,117 8,116,117 8,116,117

9,098,380 9,016,804 9,001,931

 

17



This page is intentionally left blank



THE HOLEHIRD TRUST

Charity Reg No. 235345

 

Income & Expenditure Account for the ten months ended 31.01.18

 Note  31.01.18 31.03.17 30.11.16

Incoming Resources

Sale of Investments 0 100,000 100,000

Rents 178,482 189,551 138,867

Insurance Claims 1,092 0 0

Interest on Balance 0 167 0

Total incoming Resources 179,574 289,718 238,867

Resources Expended

Building & Ground Maintenance 59,855 98,723 59,044

Other Premises Costs 22,712 30,347 20,548

Other  20,500 39,766 25,095

Grants 33,670 38,980 24,130

Fees 3,367 3,898 2,413

Total Resources Expended 140,104 211,714 131,230

Net Incoming / Outgoing( - ) Resources 39,470 78,004 107,637

Other Recognised Gains and Losses

Unrealised Gains / ( - Losses)

on Investments 2 42,106 16,842 -27,664

Net Movement in Funds 81,576 94,846 79,973

Balance B/F 655,203 560,357 560,357

Balances C/F 736,779 655,203 640,330

19



This page is intentionally left blank



THE HOLEHIRD TRUST

Charity Reg No. 235345

Notes to the accounts for the ten months ended 31.01.18

1 Accounting Policies

These accounts have been prepared using the accruals convention and in accordance 

with applicable accounting standards and the Statement of Recommended Practice

on Accounting by Charities.

2 Unrealised Gains on Investments

Valuation at 31.01.18 was 15,002.29 pence per COIF accumulation share.

5,104.74 units were held at this date.

£

Valuation of Holding at 31.03.17 723,722

Valuation of Holding at 31.01.18 765,828

Unrealised Gain / ( - Loss) 42,106  

In order to guard against potential reduction in valuation due to the 

EU referendum vote 843.04 units were sold on 22.06.16. This realised £ 100,000.

3 Tangible Fixed Assets

£

Valuation at 31.03.17 8,159,745

Additions for year 0

Disposals for year 0

Revaluation in year 0

Net Book Value at 31.01.18 8,159,745

4 Debtors 2017/18 2016/17

Rent Income 6,069 2,239

Under allocation of grants and fees 0 5,588

6,069 7,827

5 Liabilites - due within one year 2017/18 2016/17

General Creditors 0 0

6 Reserves

Unrestricted Capital Revaluation

Funds Reserve Reserve

Balance at 31.03.17 655,203 245,484 8,116,117

Movement in Year 81,576 0 0

Balance at 31.01.18 736,779 245,484 8,116,117

21



This page is intentionally left blank



THE HOLEHIRD TRUST

Schedule of Grants paid 2017-18

Organisation Application No Awarded (£) Locality

St.Michael's Parochial Church Council 19458 1,500 Eden

Our Place Youth Club 19742a 2,000 South Lakeland

South Cumbria Breastfeeding Support 19754a 1,000 South Lakeland

1st Kendal Scouts 19869b 2,000 South Lakeland

St.Thomas Community Connections 19965b 1,214 South Lakeland

Growing Well 19981b 2,000 South Lakeland

Penrith Cricket Club 20001b 1,000 Eden

Highlights Productions 20025b 1,000 Eden

Euphoric Circus 20089a 1,500 Eden

Morland Newby and Sleagill Village Hall 20127b 2,000 Eden

Ormside Village Hall 20148a 2,000 Eden

Kendal and South Lakes Centre for Independent Living ‘One Voice’ 20216 1,500 South Lakeland

Kendal Lads and Girls Club 20267b 2,000 South Lakeland

Lyvennet Nursery Group Crosby Ravensworth 20418 2,000 Eden

Riversiders Trust 2042c 2,000 South Lakeland

Eden Hearing Services 20485b 2,000 Eden

Friends of Abbott Hall Playground 20487c 2,000 South Lakeland

Windermere Youth Project 20507 1,466 South Lakeland

Castle Street Community Centre Kendal 20430c 2,000 South Lakeland

Kendal and District Bus Users 20532 1,000 South Lakeland

Kendal Timebank 20547 490 South Lakeland

33,670

23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



HOLEHIRD TRUST – 8th March 2018

All of the applications are eligible geographically and have been selected on the Trusts 
charitable objectives and priorities – Older People, Disabled People, Children and Youth. 
All projects have been assessed on the Community Foundation’s standard procedure.

20546 Grasmere Village Society
Broadgate Meadow Playground Refurbishment
Requested £4,000
Recommended £2,000
Priority –Adults but some older people
Charitable objectives - To provide the facilities to beneficairies

20555 Holme Bowling Club
New Ground Maintenance Equipment
Requested £2,000.00
Recommended £2,000
Priority – All age groups
Charitable objectives - To provide the facilities to beneficairies

20559a With Singing In Mind
Running costs 
Requesting £2,000.00  
Recommended £2,000.00
Priority – Older people and people with a disability
Charitable objectives - To provide the services to beneficairies

20588 The Beck Community Centre
Adult Gym Equipment
Requesting £1,000.00  
Recommended £329.00
Priority –Adults but some older people
Charitable objectives - To provide the facilities to beneficairies

20548 Preston Richard Community Plan Group
Speed Indicator Device
Requesting £3,000.00  
Recommended £00.00
  

25

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust 17/18 (Groups) Application no 20546
Project cost £50,000.00 Amount requested £4,000.00
Amount 
recommended

£2,000.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Grasmere Village Society Name Nick McCraith
Post Town AMBLESIDE District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 5 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

120

Aims of the 
group

The Village Society aims to protect and promote the wellbeing and nature of Grasmere village 
both in terms of the village infrastructure and the village population, the latter including our 
visitors.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

1 No. of 
approved 
grants

0 Total Amount 
Awarded

£0.00

Project Details
Project title Broadgate Meadow Playground Refurbishment
Project detail The project is to improve the facilities in the existing children’s playground. The play 

equipment is coming to the end of its life. Pieces are worn and dated and are gradually being 
removed as no longer fit for use. The flooring is also worn and muddy. The area is well used 
but does not provide play value for all ages and it is neither exciting nor challenging.

Need Numerous complaints to the Village Society over the past years about the state of the play 
equipment and the flooring.

Disadvantage The local children do not have access to any other play facilities and the nearest play area is 5 
miles away.

Benefits Both the local resident community and our numerous visitors will benefit. The park itself is 
well used by local residents and could be turned into a destination playground, attracting 
visitors all year round to enjoy this open space surrounded by spectacular scenery.

Measure By feedback from users.
After funding 
ends

The refurbished play area will be maintained by South Lakes District Council.
The refurbishment is a one off activity.

No of beneficiaries 1000 No of volunteers 0

Expenditure

Other costs: £50,000

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£29,000.00 £10000 private donation. £10000 from SLDC Locally important 
projects fund. £3000 from GVS

Applying 
Elsewhere

Yes Applications being made to Coop, Holehird Trust, Frieda Scott Trust 
etc.

Quotes Received Yes

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Registered charity set up in 1977 to support the community in Grasmere village. 
£29k raised of a £50k projects and they have applied to other funders towards the project costs. 
They are unable to provide quotes as the project will not go out to tender until they have raised 
£60k. 

27



SLDC will maintain the area once completed and the group do not have protection policies but 
use those of SLDC.   They are being supported by SLDC's Green space Officer and SLDC will 
manage the project.
They want to update the existing equipment and make the play area usable all year round for 
local people and visitors.  At the moment the play surface is not suitable for this. 
If funding goes to plan they plan to have the new play area in place by late 2018. 

The organisation have previously raised funds to install adult gym equipment in the park and 
provide a Defibrillator. 
They do fund raise themselves and have nearly 2 years expenditure in their accounts at the end 
of December 2016 (£11,750.00). 

Recommend a contribution
Priority - Children & Young People
Charitable objectives - To provide the facilities to beneficiaries

28



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust 17/18 (Groups) Application no 20555
Project cost £6,933.00 Amount requested £2,000.00
Amount 
recommended

£2,000.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Holme Bowling Club Name Mike Fell
Post Town CARNFORTH District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 6 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

165

Aims of the 
group

We are a crown green bowling club in the small rural village of Holme in South Cumbria. The 
main aim of our club is to promote the sport of crown green bowling within the village of 
Holme and surrounding area, and to provide facilities for club members and visitors to play 
bowls either in an informal way or competitively within local leagues. However more 
importantly the club provides a facility within our village for people of all ages and physical 
abilities to take part in sport, stay active, and meet on a social basis. 
The club is run entirely by volunteers and funded through membership fees and fund raising 
activities.

Membership is open to everyone irrespective of age, gender, or ability. We currently have 66 
members between the age of 11 and 80 years. During 2017, we had 9 teams competing in 4 
local leagues, and in addition, we held an open competition and 5 member’s competitions. The 
club for many years has had an active programme of coaching for junior members and has for 
many years had a strong link with Holme Community School. During the summer term of each 
year pupils in year 6 come to the bowling green to take part in coaching and fun bowls as part 
of their physical education lessons. Over time this has led to many children from the school 
becoming junior and eventually adult members, making us the envy of many other bowling 
clubs within the area and farther afield.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

3 No. of 
approved 
grants

2 Total Amount 
Awarded

£1240.00

Project Details
Project title New Grounds Maintenance Equipment
Project detail Over the years we have undertaken an ongoing programme of improvements to the overall 

facilities of our club, however our priority has always been to maintain the playing surface of 
our "green" to as high a standard as possible. Earlier this year an independent assessment of the 
overall condition of our green identified how the standard of the playing surface could be 
improved. This project, for which grant funding is being sort, is to purchase additional 
maintenance equipment which will allow us to maintain the playing surface of our green to a 
higher standard than at present. The new equipment comprises of a power unit with a verti-
cutter and brush attachments/cassettes.  The verti-cutter is designed to remove horizontal 
growth and dead grass, which it is not possible to remove with a conventional mower. The 
brush attachment aids both verti-cutting and conventional mowing by lifting the blades of grass 
prior to cutting.

Need Over the last 34 years that our club has been in existence we have strived to provide the best 
possible facilities for current and future members and visitors. Although all the facilities taken 
as a whole play an important part, the standard of playing surface of our green has, and always 
will be, our major priority. Our members tell us that although the playing surface is currently 
well maintained to a good standard that they would like to see that standard improved to 
increase the speed and also to improve the playability during adverse weather conditions. 
Following research by our greenkeeper, and the outcome of an independent expert assessment 
of our green, we have concluded that it is not possible to achieve the improvements that have 
been requested with our current maintenance equipment, however the recommendations from 
the assessment is that using a verti-cutter as part of our routine maintenance regime would 

29



produce the required improvement. We have attended a practical demonstration of a verti-
cutter and as a result we come to the same conclusion. In addition, our two qualified coaches 
have also concluded that improving the quality, and therefore speed of the playing surface 
would greatly benefit both the young and less physically able bowlers by enabling them to 
propel bowls across the green with less physical effort, thus allowing them to compete on a 
more equal level with older or more able bowlers, resulting in greater inclusion for all.

Disadvantage Like many small rural communities the residents of Holme have limited access to local sports 
facilities, and in particular those which are suitable for all ages and physical abilities, they are 
therefore at a disadvantage to people who live in larger urban areas where a more extensive 
range of activities are normally available. The availability of sports facilities within rural 
communities such as Holme have been developed over time by the members of the community 
to meet local needs, and now form an important role within our village.  It has always been our 
aim to provide a quality facility that is accessible to all, whatever their individual 
circumstances. The main purpose of Holme Bowling Club is to promote the sport of crown 
green bowling within the village of Holme, and to provide facilities for club members and 
visitors to play bowls either in an informal way or competitively within local leagues. However 
in addition to the sporting activity aspect of our club we also see a significant social benefit 
were children, teenagers and adults come together in an atmosphere of mutual support and 
respect.

Benefits The result of using these two pieces of equipment in conjunction with conventional mowing 
will allow us to produce a much improved playing surface, which in turn will make the surface 
more resilient to the extremes of our South Cumbria climate. Members and visitors to the club 
will benefit from this improvement to the playing surface that will be produced by using the 
new maintenance equipment. This will also make the playing surface more resilient during wet 
conditions and therefore resulting in less interruption to use during the playing season.  It is 
also hoped that the improved playing surface will make the experience of playing crown green 
bowls more enjoyable for people new to the sport. In improving the playing surface this will 
increase the speed of the green which is particularly beneficial to less physically able players.
The additional long term benefits of this type of system where the power unit has 
interchangeable attachments/cassettes mean that over time when our current maintenance 
equipment needs replacing then we will be able to purchase additional attachments/cassettes 
for the power unit resulting in a significant financial saving over the purchase of direct 
replacements.

Measure Although improvement of the playing surface is difficult to quantify, and is also influenced by 
a number of external factors such as weather conditions which are beyond our control, it will 
be possible to evaluate improvement over time by feedback from players, visual inspection by 
our greenkeeper, and also further independent expert assessment after a suitable period of time.

After funding 
ends

The part of the project for which grant funding is being sort is a one-off capital purchase of 
new maintenance equipment. However, the overall project is to purchase the equipment and 
then to use it as part of our ongoing maintenance regime to improve the standard of the playing 
surface of our green. The use of the new piece of maintenance equipment has no additional cost 
involvement, and ongoing maintenance of the equipment will be met from club funds.

No of beneficiaries 150 No of volunteers 15

Expenditure
Capital costs: £2,000.00
Total capital cost is £6933. Breakdown of costs is shown 
on enclosed quotations and quotation summery.

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£1,850.00 £1000 grant funding from Cumbria County Council. £850 Boxing 
Day Duck Race.

Applying 
Elsewhere

Yes £2000 applied for from Hadfield Trust. £1000 applied for from The 
Harold and Alice Bridges Charity.

Quotes Received Yes

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Holme is in the parish of Burton in Kendal (Westmorland)
Application for a contribution towards a power unit with a verti cutter and brush. 
Small group with 66 members aged from 11 to 80 years old, they also allow visitors to use the 

30



facility for a small charge.  
The club has been ran for 34 years by volunteers and their income comes from subscriptions 
and quite a bit of fundraising.  They are able to keep themselves financially sustainable, but 
when they need funding for a larger project like this they have to apply for grant aid.
They have applied to us for part of the project costs and the remaining costs have been applied 
for to other funders.
Recommend support to help this rural community group keep providing quality facilities for 
the community.

Priority - All age groups
Charitable objectives - to provide the facilities to beneficiaries.

31



This page is intentionally left blank



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust 17/18 (Groups) Application no 20559a
Project cost £9,000.00 Amount requested £2,000.00
Amount 
recommended

£2,000.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation With Singing In Mind Name Eddie Harrison
Post Town KENDAL District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 3 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

153

Aims of the 
group

WSIM is an initiative in Kendal working with people who live with a neurodegenerative 
condition such as Motor Neurone Disease, Dementia, Stroke, & Parkinson's disease. We work 
mainly through SINGING, and we sing as a GROUP. Voices are so innately personal and 
unique and they offer us a remarkable avenue for self-expression and communication. Group 
singing is physically non-invasive and the bond of singing together can help alleviate isolation 
and create a sense of belonging.
  We know that singing in particular, triggers reactions from almost all areas of the brain and 
connects us to our deepest feelings and experiences. 
We aim within the group, to provide a level playing field for all those attending--clients & 
carers alike, We hope to enrich, uplift, empower & focus identity, and provide a lifeline to 
those often marginalised from the mainstream, by providing an environment in which there are 
opportunities to re-connect with themselves and others.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

9 No. of 
approved 
grants

7 Total Amount 
Awarded

£8000.00

Project Details
Project title Part-funding of a facilitator, venue, & promotional advertising
Project detail We would like to sustain this very successful group by continuing with our gifted facilitator 

whose singing expertise and personal empathy is the inspiration for all involved.
We would also like to increase awareness through publicity of our weekly singing workshop 
thus providing opportunities and encouragement to a wider community

Need This is a voluntary run group and the continuity of people attending over the past years along 
with the feedback received shows that this group is highly valued. We also have had referrals 
from hospital, caring organisations, and recommendations by word of mouth, through our 
regular attendance at the Kendal Dementia Action Alliance Meetings

Disadvantage The majority of people attending our sessions live with some form of neurodegenerative 
condition, we feel the sessions are of great benefit to them, but also in particular their carers & 
family members who need the support to continue to provide care.& compassion

Benefits We consider we have been providing a lifeline to those marginalized from the mainstream and 
helping both our clients and their carers in variety of ways to re-connect with themselves and 
others

Measure We are constantly monitoring each session for ways of improving and any changes are 
discussed at committee level. We are also adding any compliments received to our already 
growing portfolio.

After funding 
ends

This is not a one off project and it is hoped to continue well into the future, we are constantly 
looking for funding, Our aim is to keep a regular income thus putting this group on a more 
secure standing.

No of beneficiaries 30 No of volunteers 5

Expenditure

Operational costs: £6,000.00
Facilitator  expenses

Office, Overhead, Premises Costs: £1,200.00
Hire of Venue

Publicity costs: £300.0033



Other costs: £100.00
Insurance 70, CVS Membership 30

Banner, 200 Posters 50, Web site costs 50
All costs estimated

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£200.00 Santa Coll £200

Applying 
Elsewhere

Yes Awaiting Local church Christmas Tree festival amount unknown, 
Awaiting Local Council grant 2018 £500

Quotes Received No

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Part a is allocated to one of our other funds to obtain the full project costs. 
Applicant established in April 2015. It follows on from an Alzheimer's Society initiative to 
help people who suffer with dementia. 

Sessions run every week on a Monday from 1.30pm until 3.30pm at Kendal’s Hallgarth 
Community Centre and attracts 25-40 people. The initiative promotes communication through 
singing which can help with articulation, concentration, focus and motivation and is aimed at 
people with neurological conditions and their loved ones or carers. 

The sessions include refreshments, singing and gentle aerobic exercise such as throwing balls 
and armchair exercises. It is not a sing along. The professional facilitator, Ali Rigg has years of 
experience working with these groups of people and she works with dedicated volunteers.

The structured group sessions use music and rhythm to encourage communication and 
participation and include opportunities to talk to other people. Each session includes a range of 
activities including vocal warm-up and singing a variety of familiar and new songs. 

One client suffers from Cerebellae Ataxia. Since attending, feedback from the family states that 
her speech has improved. Other positive feedback is from a daughter who states that her 
mother is more relaxed after the sessions and her coordination has improved, while she enjoys 
talking to other people in a similar situation.
One gentleman who attends is recovering from a stroke, During the sessions it was reported "it 
is noticeable that his communication skills are improving all the time". This was highlighted by 
his wife who mentioned that it had improved their lives no end.

There will be a small charge of £3 per person including carers to offset some costs. They 
advertise in care homes, GP surgeries, Age UK Centre and the local hospital. 
Facilitator fees are the most expensive part of the project, but she is very experienced, she co-
designed Cumbria’s first weekly Singing For The Brain group for The Alzheimer’s Society and 
has led two groups across Cumbria for the last 6 years.

Suggest a contribution.
Priority- People with a disability
Charitable objectives - to provide the services to beneficiaries.

34



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust 17/18 (Groups) Application no 20588
Project cost £10,500.00 Amount requested £1,000.00
Amount 
recommended

£329.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation The Beck Community Centre Name Helen Whittaker
Post Town KENDAL District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 4 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

166

Aims of the 
group

“To advance education and to provide facilities in the interests of social welfare, recreation and 
leisure-time occupation without distinction of sex, race, politics, religion, disability or other 
opinion. 
To maintain and manage the Community Centre or to co-operate with any local statutory 
authority or other body in the maintenance and management of the Centre for activities 
promoted by the Association in furtherance of the objects.” 
Our regular user groups comprise of Pre School, Toddlers, Beavers, Cubs, Rainbows, 
Brownies, Guides, Street Dance, Morris Dance, Ballet, Keep Fit, Indoor bowls, , U3A 
computer group,  Rhythm and Movement Group, Craft group, Slimming Club and Heron Hill 
Free Church,
The centre is also available for party bookings at the weekend

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

4 No. of 
approved 
grants

1 Total Amount 
Awarded

£815.00

Project Details
Project title Adult Gym Equipment
Project detail The aim of the project is to provide outdoor adult gym equipment close to the Beck 

Community centre on SLDC land adjacent to the children’s playground.
It is envisaged that the exercise equipment may be part of a larger scheme to way mark local 
walks encouraging local people to exercise and take part in health improvement programmes 
such as the NHS “couch to 5k”

Need Consultation by local Councillors and our committee has established the need for the outdoor 
adult gym equipment.  The community centre is running a consultation day in February to 
understand what type of exercises users would like to be able to do in order to understand what 
items of gym equipment to purchase.

Disadvantage There is considerable housing development in this area of the town, but no amenities such as 
gym equipment, unlike other areas of Kendal.
 Our project will enhance our greenspace and possibly introduce new users to the community 
centre.

Benefits We want to provide equipment for local young people and adults to use on a regular basis, 
providing free access to gym equipment to improve physical activity of all in our area.  This 
will improve physical health, obesity and mental health in the local area The primary function 
of our project is to encourage healthy outdoor exercise without the need to pay expensive gym 
fees.

This gym equipment will encourage greater use and participation and thereby directly 
contribute to ensuring a more active and healthy lifestyle for local residents

Measure At the end of 2017 we began to work with the Integrated Care Community in South Cumbria, 
their aim is to place health and wellbeing at the heart of the community. We were approached 
with a view to exploring how the Community Centre could support the aim of helping people 
to manage their own health conditions. Although the idea for the trim trail had already been 
suggested we felt that this would be an excellent way for local residents to improve their own 
health and we hope the results will show in future statistics . 
We also intend to monitor the success of the scheme by having further consultation 35



opportunities both directly and via social media.
After funding 
ends

This is a one off project, but as mentioned it is hoped that it will become part of a larger 
scheme to way mark local favourite walks with distances to encourage residents towards a 
healthier lifestyle in a fun way

No of beneficiaries 6000 No of volunteers 5

Expenditure

Capital costs: £1,000.00
This is the cost of equipment, installation will be 
undertaken by South Lakeland District Council who will 
also provide future maintenance

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£0.00

Applying 
Elsewhere

Yes SLDC Locally Important Projects -£7000, CCC Community Grants-
£1500

Quotes Received Yes

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Registered Charity 1004052 who were established in 1996.
They have applied to SLDC and CCC for £8,500 towards the project. SLDC will insure and 
maintain the equipment, which will be for 16+ years of age. The land belongs to SLDC.
Estimate provided were not for this project, but were for another similar project. The group 
plan to complete a community consultation exercise so at the moment they still have some 
work to do before they decide which equipment the community would want.
Accounts provided are dated December 2016 and show over 2 years expenditure in their 
accounts so they could afford to pay something towards the project themselves.
Because they have applied to other funders for most of their project costs and have some 
funding themselves recommend support for the remaining money left in the fund.
Priority - some older people
Charitable objectives - to provide the facilities to beneficiaries

36



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust 18/19 (Groups) Application no 20548
Project cost £8,000.00 Amount requested £3,000.00
Amount 
recommended

£0.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Preston Richard Community Plan 

Working Group
Name Ann Park

Post Town ENDMOOR District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 5 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

133

Aims of the 
group

The Community Plan Team was set up together with Preston Richard Parish Council to gain a 
better understanding of the needs and expectations of the 1,305 members of the community 
across the parish including Crooklands, Milton, Endmoor, Summerlands, Deer Park & Low 
Park to enable them to build a Community Plan (CP) which would fully represent all members 
of the community. To make sure all members of the community had the opportunity to 
influence the CP, a questionnaire was delivered to all 535 households in the parish with 
questions on Traffic & Travel, New Developments, The Environment, Community Life, 
Broadband & Energy and Local Business & Employment. 209 questionnaires were completed 
which represented a 35% response and solid base for the team to build on. The CP team 
analysed the responses from the questionnaires and used this to create Community Plan and 
Action Plan which was approved by the parish council in February 2015. A copy of the 
Summary Community Plan is attached. We are a group of 25 volunteers entitled 'The 
Community Plan Working Group' from a wide section of the community (4 of which are 
Parish Councillors) working with the Parish Council, from time to time other members of the 
Community join specific projects to offer their particular expertise.  The purpose of the 
working group is to implement the Community Action Plan contained within the Community 
Plan (CP) (launched on Saturday 28th March 2015) on behalf of the residents of the Parish. 
The remit of The Working Group is to engage with the residents of the Parish to bring about 
improvements suggested in the CP, keep them informed of the progress to date and review the 
progress monthly.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

2 No. of 
approved 
grants

1 Total Amount 
Awarded

£1750.00

Project Details
Project title Speed Indicator Devices
Project detail The Community Plan Working Group are applying for this grant towards a one off cost to 

purchase a further two Speed Indicator Devices (SID's) to be used on Gatebeck Road which 
houses many of the villages facilities, including the primary school, this is an effort to 
slowdown the excessive number of motorists who exceed the legal speed limit throughout our 
parish, we hope to make our roads safer for all members of the public. From Police records we 
have an average of 45,000 vehicles per week going through our parish. The A65 goes through 
the middle of our parish and is a direct link to the M6, we aim to make motorists more aware of 
their speed so that they will moderate their speed to meet the required 30 mph limit. The results 
of the Community Plan Questionnaire clearly identified Speeding Traffic as a major concern to 
the community. 76% of respondents identified this as a serious concern to them and their 
families with 73% specifically identifying “Flashing Speed Indicator Devices” as a means to 
making the roads safer for the public. We are therefore endeavouring to raise funds towards 
providing two more to protect the children walking to school and to the play area and the 
elderly when attending functions at the Village Hall or to the Post Office which necessitates 
walking through the village.

Need Our evidence has been drawn from the Community Plan Questionnaire and by numerous 
complaints into the Parish Council of near misses or speeding on this Road. The new houses 
have raised the concerns of the public significantly regarding this problem and as such we need 

37



to address it as a matter of some urgency. A further problem is that a care home has opened on 
this road therefore increasing parking on the road and necessitating more children being on the 
road. We monitor the community’s response by the amount of complaints we receive about 
speeding and on our website and Facebook page we have asked for their comments and we are 
fully aware the community want these devices as we currently get more complaints when a 
device has been in in-situ and then moved and the traffic speeds up.

Disadvantage Gatebeck Road houses the St Patrick’s  primary school, the Village Hall, the village Post 
Office, two Caravan Parks, the Playing Field, the football pitch, the tennis courts and the 
Children’s Play Park it is a narrow road and is used as a short cut by HGV’s to Gatebeck 
Business Park and housed on the road is L&W Wilson being a large haulage firm with many 
HGV’s coming in and out every day, with the increased building work of 106 houses and the 
increase in residents we feel this is a real danger as there is no pavement and very little 
lighting, we feel by putting SID's on this road it will help raise awareness of the need to slow 
down. By putting SIDs at either end it will integrate the road and make people aware it is part 
of the village not just a rural route into the village and that it is covered by a 30 mph limit. The 
residents as pedestrians or drivers currently take their life in their hands at the moment using 
this road due to it being so narrow with bends and few lights, the lights we have are often 
smashed due to large lorries having to get into the side to pass but with more traffic and 
pedestrians something needs to be done to raise awareness. This road which accommodates 
almost  all of the village’s facilities as above is used by everyone and especially the elderly and 
very young,  the elderly complain they need to rush across the road due to traffic and as such 
causes them concerns, we have been told many do not attend functions as they do not like 
crossing the road at night or they drive to the Post Office in preference to walking down the 
road, parents of young children complain about the speeding traffic when going to and from the 
children's play area and playing fields.

Benefits In 2016 you very kindly helped us buy our first SID which slowed down the traffic 
dramatically wherever it was placed. We found by opting to buy a smiley/frowning face SID 
which interacts with the driver depending on their speed has proved very successful in 
educating both parents and children on watching their speed, the school children tell us they 
make their parents slowdown in order to see a smiley face. We know from data collected that 
when there is a SID in place it does slow down the traffic and makes it safer for everyone in the 
village and passing motorists. We have been advised by our County Councillor that we have 
been recognised as the forerunners in slowing down traffic in South Lakeland as many other 
parishes are following our lead and I have been contacted by many parishes in South Lakeland 
and north Lancashire for advice on acquiring SIDs. The problem is that we had only one SID to 
cover 4 black-spot areas and this necessitates moving the SID at regular intervals which is not 
an easy job and we found once moved the traffic speeded up again. We therefore started to 
raise money towards more SIDS, many parishes managed to get several SIDs in place initially 
which we could not afford. We have managed to raise enough funds to purchase one more SID 
therefore having one at each end of the village and have £2045 towards the next two which are 
solely for the road to most of the village’s facilities. The SID's reduced speed considerably but 
we find that once the SID is removed the motorists speed increased, so we need permanent 
SID's to remind and educate motorist on the danger of speeding through villages particularly 
when children are going to and from school, the elderly going to the Post Office.  This has 
become more urgent as 106 houses are to be built this year adjacent to this road which already 
houses a large haulage company, two caravan parks and is a direct route to Gatebeck Business 
Park therefore many large vehicles use this road which has no pavement either side of the road. 
And needless to say this year many more heavy vehicles will be about when building work 
starts. A further business park is planned for the end of this road as part of SLDC’s  Local Plan. 
By having SID's both ends this will slow down traffic and give us data on when the 
Speedwatch Team need to reinforce the initiative with our Speedgun and hopefully educate 
drivers both new and current on the need to slow down as children will be walking on the road 
in order to get to school or the elderly to get to the Post Office or Village Hall.

Measure We intend to purchase a statistics package with the SIDs to obtain data which will help our 
Speedwatch team identify the most appropriate times go out with the speed gun should the 
need arise to target the offenders more directly, although we hope the SIDs will have the 
desired affect and slow everyone down.  We further send our statistics to the police for their 
information should they wish to monitor the area with the camera van.

After funding 
ends

We see this as a one off project as SIDs last several years and come with a six years warranty.

No of beneficiaries 2500 No of volunteers 48
38



Expenditure
Capital costs: £3,000.00
2 Speed Indicator Devices  £5460.60
2 Solar Panels                    £1140.00
2 Licences                           £ 600.00
2 Blue Tooth devices           £ 684.00
2 posts                                 £115.40

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£2,045.00 Preston Richard Parish Council - £1000, public donation £500, 
CPWG funds raised £545

Applying 
Elsewhere

Yes £1500 applied for from Story Homes £1000 from CCC Local 
Members Fund

Quotes Received Yes

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Founded in March 2015 and set up as a Working Group to implement the Community Action 
Plan. The Group is a Working Party of Preston Richard Parish Council.
Their bank account is the Parish Council bank account and accounts.

The road leading to the village is a long straight road and cars previously tended to speed up 
along this part.
The group have previously been awarded funding for a speed deterrent sign and are now 
requesting funding for another two for the village. 
They have previously had on loan a sign from the Local Area Partnership of SLDC before 
buying the first device.  

Recommend reject due to the amount of money in the fund and the number of applications.  
We have already funded one speed device for them previously.

39



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

41

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	5 CUMBRIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AGREEMENT
	HOLEHIRD - Balance Sheet for Meeting 08.03.18
	HOLEHIRD - Income & Expenditure for meeting 08.03.18
	HOLEHIRD - Notes to Accounts for meeting 08.03.18
	HOLEHIRD - Schedule of Grants Paid for meeting 08.03.18

	6 GRANT APPLICATIONS
	20546 Grasmere Village Society
	20555 Holme Bowling Club
	20559a With Singing in Mind
	20588 The Beck Community Centre Kendal
	20548 Preston Richard community Plan Working Group

	8 PROPERTY MATTERS

